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O
UR

 V
IS

IO
N

Baptist Care Northern Territory exists to express

God's love in addressing profound human, social,

emotional, physical and spiritual needs through

direct support services, advocacy and

encouraging self-sufficiency, empowerment and

community development. This is achieved in

partnership with churches where possible and the

wider community where appropriate.
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CHAIR ADDRESS

It has been an incredible year in the life of Baptist Care NT. We have seen a lot of change and

been required to adapt significantly to the enormous changes going on in the world, particularly

during 2020.

 

Towards the end of 2019, the organisation said farewell to Paul Avery. The Board wishes to

acknowledge Paul and his work as CEO over the last 3 years. We also want to acknowledge and

thank Peter Chandler for stepping into the Acting Chief Executive Officer role until our new CEO

started in January, 2020.

 

Our new CEO Peter Pilt joined Baptist Care with significant experience building church

connected, community based, not for profit organisations. The Board has been delighted to see

Peter’s emphasis on building relationships and developing sustainable and accessible practices to

meet the vision of Baptist Care - to see people across the NT encounter God’s love in action.

 

This year has involved many opportunities to partner across the community, engaging and

partnering with the NT Government, local churches, community groups, Territory Businesses and

our valued national partnerships with Foodbank Australia and Baptist Care Australia. We are

deeply aware that together we have the chance to serve many across our community, and see

this in action through programs such as Food for Life - responding to emergency issues across the

NT through providing food, and Project Zero Hunger - considering deeply how we may be able to

assist in providing basic food security for all in our community.

 

Finally, I wish to thank my fellow Board members, and honour their hard work behind the scenes

and commitment to Baptist Care NT. It has been a pleasure to serve with you all.

P H O E B E  V A N  B E N T U M

BOARD CHAIR
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Foodbank NT seeks to eliminate hunger in our community through

providing donated food to community organisations that feed

hungry people in our community. Through Foodbank, our

warehouse in Berrimah is the pantry to the charities of the

Northern Territory. 

O
UR

 P
RO

G
RA

M
S

F O O D B A N K

Food for Life is a not-for-profit program run by Baptist Care NT

that offers low-cost groceries to individuals and families

experiencing food insecurity. Food for Life exists to ensure that

people in the Darwin area do not go hungry. In partnership with

local churches, the Community Pantry Bus takes food from our

warehouse out into the community. 

Baptist Care NT works with Territory schools to feed

students and teach about food waste.  

F O O D  F O R  L I F E

S C H O O L S  P R O G R A M

R E M O T E  C O M M U N I T I E S

Through Foodbank NT, Baptist Care NT works towards

building strong relationships with remote communities and  

explores opportunities to alleviate food insecurity in these

communities.   
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FROM THE  CEO

I have now been the CEO of Baptist Care Northern Territory for 8 months and what an

8 months that has been! I think in the history of Baptist Care NT there has never been a

year where our existence was needed more than what it has been during the

2019/2020 financial year. 

As Covid-19 took hold around Australia, one of the fallouts from the virus was

economic pain and whilst we in the NT have escaped relatively unscathed by the

actual virus, the economic hardship was something we did not escape. As a result, the

ministries of Baptist Care NT: - Foodbank, remote schools and communities and Food

for Life saw a dramatic spike in demand. To illustrate this point, in March to June 2019,

the equivalent of 124,000 meals of food was processed through our warehouse. The

same period in 2020 saw that figure jump to a staggering 200,000 meals. This is

despite, at the peak of Covid-19, the warehouse almost ran out of food.

The book of Matthew in the Bible tells the story of “the feeding of the 5000”, in which

Jesus’ disciples came to Him and suggested that He tell the 5000 people to go away

to local towns to get food, as the hour was late and the people were hungry. Jesus

simply tells them, “You give them something to eat”.  The disciples argued with Jesus,

citing amongst other things the lack of resources to achieve this goal. 20 years ago,

with no idea that at some point in my life I would be living in the Northern Territory

undertaking a job that currently is primarily about feeding hungry people, I wrote in the

margin in my Bible: ‘What do we do when other people’s hunger becomes

inconvenient?’

 At Baptist Care, through its feeding programs, we don’t ever want to tell people to ‘go

away’ due to lack of resources or for any other reason. Therefore, it was interesting

that during the Covid-19 demand spike, and as the warehouse pallet racks were

getting emptier and emptier, I prayed and asked God for a ‘loaves and fish’ miracle.

Within a three-week period we had so much food that for the first time in Baptist Care

NT’s Foodbank operation history, we had to store pallets of food off-site.

I would like to acknowledge and thank the NT Government, Baptist Care Australia,

Corporations, individuals and food preparation businesses, who provided us with

finance, food, volunteers and many incidental necessities, for example the use of a

vehicle. I would start naming names but it would take too much space here.
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I also want to take the opportunity to thank and acknowledge the incredible effort

of the staff and volunteers who stepped up incredibly to ensure we were feeding as

many people as possible. Each of you is a true champion of the concept of zero

hunger in the NT

In June we relaunched a new-look Food for Life, after the ministry was suspended

for two weeks due to Covid-19 restrictions. Version 2 of Food for Life has been well

received and allows shoppers more variety, improved access as well as the ability to

increase how much food they can buy. Feedback we have received from clients has

been very positive with comments like, “It gives us more dignity”, “We like having

more choice”, and “There is a better selection of food”.

Currently Baptist Care NT is 100% involved in food justice and there are plans

underway to expand into the community services sector. Much research is being

conducted and I am looking forward to next year’s annual report where I will be able

to give details on the progress of this endeavour. I firmly believe that God has some

significant plans ahead for Baptist Care NT.

I want to conclude by saying that it has been my great honour to serve Baptist Care

NT as the CEO this year and I look forward to Baptist Care NT’s continuing

significance as an organisation as we give people hope with love and compassion.

P E T E R  P I L T

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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Foodbank NT gives food relief to 6,399
people each month

Foodbank NT reduces food waste in the
NT by providing three tiers of food relief
-  from grocery stores, through program

delivery and on to local farmers 

In 2019 there was a 27% increase in the
number of Territorians seeking food

relief from charities

Data taken from Foodbank Hunger Report 2019





2019 - 2020, will no doubt be remembered in history as a time of great challenge,

great change and where our community has had no choice but to adapt. And it is

the same story for Foodbank NT Operations where we have all had to learn to

adapt to changes in everyday circumstances, face emerging challenges, change

positions, review and implement new operating procedures and adapt to an ever

changing environment. However, throughout this period of uncertainty was the

remarkable response of our volunteers, our supporters and our community.

 

Leading into the 2019 Christmas period our warehouse stock levels were lower due

to two main drivers. The first related to our new interstate stock transfers moving

away from the “accept all” policy, where sadly the process was leading to a lot of

waste, expensive waste! The new process was much smarter, where we were able

to accept or not accept our share of the national donations. This was only possible

with the agreement of all State and Territory Foodbanks. The result was a process

where we were receiving manageable quantities of food and other products to

meet demand while not losing valuable foods to the waste stream. The downside

was, we had far lower stock levels than we would have had under the old accept

all policy.

The second driver, and one that certainly wasn’t anticipated, was how the impact

of a severe drought in southern States would affect national donations, including

our staple food supply, the Annual Purchasing Program (APP).

Combined, the net result was a severely depleted level of stock in the warehouse

leading up to Christmas. It was vital our Christmas food promotion was successful

to ensure we could meet our Christmas Hamper orders, as well as having sufficient

food available for our regular clients, schools program and for the Food for Life

program. As a result of the hard work our amazing staff, volunteers and community

support, we had more than ample food supplies being donated, in fact you could

argue we had the most food we have ever collected in a Christmas food drive on

record. This was a good outcome, particularly as we had another year of record

hamper orders.

FOODBANK
REPORT
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The new year saw an increasing use of our services and

we did struggle at times with volunteer numbers,

particularly with our Monday and Thursday early food

rescue runs. The good news though was we didn’t struggle

with volunteer numbers later in the morning to help out

with the food sort.

Enter another driver. Floods! More water in some areas of

the country than had been experienced before, or for at

least in a very long time. Again, floods certainly affected

our supply chains, including supermarkets that we rely on

for a large percentage of our fruit and vegetables. And

then the next hit was the brutal fires that burnt so much of

our beautiful country where lives, homes, animals,

bushland and crops were destroyed. This had a major

impact on agricultural products being available, and of

course most of our fundraising initiatives were all focused

around supporting fire effected communities in southern

Australia. For Foodbank NT, this also has dramatic effect

on national donations all but drying up. Our traditional

supplies through the APP were affected as supply trains

were redirected.

During late January, early February we were to add a new

name to our vernacular, Corona Virus, or using its medical

definition, Covid-19, that was to become part of our new

world. An unwelcome presence in our community, and

right around the world. This dreaded virus was to take the

lives of thousands of people and affect our way of living

on so many levels, perhaps forever.

The immediate reaction from many in the community was

to panic buy, especially toilet paper, leading to massive

runs on grocery lines right across the country. Post the

initial rush on food and other essential items, where

shopping centres were left bereft of products and

members of the community turning on each other, we

were to learn that Australia produces more than enough

food for all of us, and there was absolutely no reason to

panic. In fact, a large percentage of food Australia

produces is well in excess of our local needs and is

exported overseas, including toilet paper! Fun Fact: We

manufacture some of the very best toilet paper in the

world!

The issue was our supply chains could not keep up with

the level of demand created through panic buying. Empty

shelves lead to even more panic, and with it, even more

limits being imposed on food and other essential items to

ensure enough supply was left for everyone. Supermarkets

even had to adopt special times for essential services

personnel and seniors to shop! Transport companies

reported their operations, including plant and staff were

working triple time to keep up, and even that was not

enough!

The impact on Foodbank NT was very similar to what was

occurring in the shops, as many of our clients were

experiencing additional pressures, and their food orders

were larger than usual. This had a dramatic effect on our

warehouse stock, already depleted because of floods,

droughts and fires, as well as now we were left with the

inability to source food interstate or locally…even if we

wanted to purchase it. Our stock levels ran extremely low

and with no immediate solution in sight, including no

interstate stock deliveries, the situation was dire. It wasn’t

to improve in the short term, in fact the situation became

worse when the major supermarket chains removed their

online delivery services. This severely impacted many

communities across the Top End who relied on this

service.





Foodbank NT was also impacted as we used the online

service to fulfill our school orders when our warehouse

was unable to meet orders. To solve the problem we had

to negotiate with local store managers. One in particular

went above and beyond to help us secure the food we

needed for school orders. However the situation took

quite a few weeks to resolve and our understanding is

that his help, caused him some concern with head office.

We will always thank him for his assistance.

It is understood the reason the major supermarkets

suspended their online service was the unprecedented

high level of demand that was being experienced, well

above their capacity to manage. In one case crashing

their system. The high level of demand occurred after

people were unable to source items through

supermarkets, reverting to the online ordering systems,

causing the high level of activity. Millions of orders

flooded in. This was well beyond their capacity, however

the suspension had unintended consequences.

The next issue we faced was being contacted by many

communities, as far south as the South Australian border

all wanting to place orders with Foodbank NT to secure

food supplies for their respective communities.

 

 

 

These orders were to cater for thousands of people. Even

if we had a full warehouse it was unlikely we could assist

in supplying the quantities being requested. It was very

distressing for staff knowing we just didn’t have the

supplies or the logistics to help some of the most

vulnerable people in the Northern Territory who were now

unable to source food. It was a worrying time and we

needed to reach out firstly, to inform government of the

problem, and secondly, work with local supermarkets,

wholesalers and donors to source more food. 

 

 

Government initially brought forward $50K from our next

year’s operational grant, which provided an immediate

ability to purchase food. Negotiations were had with

Metcash/IGA and we were able to place orders, rising to

the top of the waiting list, even in front of their major

customers. Of course this came at a cost, where market

demand, and the availability of stock was critical. For

instance, when we have had to purchase rice prior to

Covid-19, we would normally pay between 90c - $1.30 kg.

Under these circumstances we were required to pay as

much as $5.70kg for rice! Given our $1.60 kg handling

fee, you can clearly see this wasn’t a sustainable option. 

 

Not long after, Foodbank Australia announced it had

secured funding through the Federal Government to

allow us to purchase food and other essential items. This

was fantastic news, but the anticipation leading up to our

first delivery was challenging. As already mentioned,

having the necessary funds was one thing, getting access

to food was another! We now know the reality of being at

the end of a very long supply chain!

Many individuals and corporate groups assisted with their

own campaigns, donating much needed supplies to help

us fulfill orders in the meantime. Over the coming months,

major companies such as INPEX, Newmont and South32

also provided grants to assist the ever increasing need in

our community and the wider Territory. And the requests

for food kept flooding in.
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One of our biggest achievements of the year no doubt

belongs to our warehouse pantry upgrades. This major

renovation was completed during one of, if not the

busiest operational periods ever experienced by

Foodbank NT. Again, our staff and volunteers rose to the

occasion to facilitate the program. However, none of this

would have been possible without Adam Griffiths from

Northern Transportables and the project team of sub-

contractors he assembled, all who gave up both their

time and valuable resources to complete the upgrades.

The companies involved included, Northern

Transportables, Hawkins and Clements, Territory

Construction Solutions, Prodigy Painting, MEC Electrical,

Custom Cabinets Design, KCS Industrial Services, Apex

Steel, Aertex and Sign City. 

The exercise included de-stocking all our old shelving and

packing stock into boxes. The shelves were then

decommissioned and stored. Anyone who has worked

with this particular type of shelving will appreciate this is

not an easy task! The whole area was thoroughly cleaned

before contractors arrived to prepare the flooring for its

new coating. This was applied over two days before the

newly constructed shelving, all painted in Foodbank

Australia’s famous “purple” colour, were gently

maneuvered into place. The painters then moved in and

did a tremendous job, particularly given some of the high

walls they were tasked to paint. Next came the cabinet

makers followed by the electrical and data cable

installers. Last but not least the sign writers installed new

signage to the counter area, external building signage as

well as directional and safety floor markings.

Staff all gave up their weekend to come in to restock our

shelves ready for our clients. The job was completed with

minimal disruptions for our operations and for our clients.

The upshot, a far more professional layout and customer

service focus.

In March, Charles Darwin University (CDU) contacted

Foodbank NT hoping to secure our assistance in

supporting mostly international students impacted by the

Covid-19 crisis. Many of these international students had

part time jobs in the hospitality industry, which was

severely impacted by Covid-19. Most if not all, lost their

only source of income. Due to their visa conditions they

were unable to access federal funding support and many

were unable to get home, even if they wanted to. They

were trapped with no income, and no way of getting

necessary food supplies.

CDU wanted to help them and after considering all their

options, reached out to Foodbank NT, in an effort to help

their students with emergency food hampers. The

challenge for Foodbank NT at the time was having

sufficient food and other essential items to provide the

hampers!

In the first few weeks we were forced into purchasing

food items through a local wholesaler to meet the

demand. This continued over the coming weeks before

much needed national donation support started to arrive.

The hamper program included designing hampers,

sourcing food and considerable preparation in the

warehouse each week setting up for packing hampers.

The program ran for 14 weeks and in that time we packed

4000 hampers. Considering our Christmas Hamper

program involves about 600-800 hampers each year, the

results are impressive!  By this point the warehouse was

turning over nearly three times our normal weekly capacity

and testament to staff and volunteers involved in

delivering a successful program

National partners Coles and Woolworths provided

significant support throughout the Covid-19 crisis,

including thousands of pre-packed hampers, fresh

vegetables, frozen meat and ambient foods. In addition,

using federal funding through Foodbank Australia we

were able to leverage significant discount through major

manufacturers, distributors and supermarket chains. There

is no way we could have managed the demand on our

services without the help of the food industry and the

diligent work of Foodbank Australia.
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The story for the end of financial year 19/20, and into 20/21

has seen a significant increase in outputs and outcomes.

Staff and volunteers have gone to extraordinary lengths to

achieve this level of operation and to assist so many

Territorians in need. It will be a year remembered for many

things, including records never achieved in the history of

Foodbank NT. The challenge however puts us in a much

better position going forward, and perhaps in a better place

to manage the next challenge. And there will be challenges

to come!

P E T E R  C H A N D L E R

GENERAL MANAGER OF OPERATIONS
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Project Zero Hunger aims to bring
hope and achieve zero hunger in

the NT 

During the early months of Covid-19,
over 80,000 extra meals were

supplied to Territorians 

Data taken from Foodbank Hunger Report 2019

48% of additional food is required
to meet demand in the NT 



Food for Life is a not-for-profit program under Baptist Care Northern Territory

providing low cost food and groceries to individual and families in the Darwin area.

The program includes a café area, a venue where people can engage and develop

connections and acquaintances. By so doing, it develops the growth of a ‘social

capital’ where people nurture common values, trust, norms, cooperation and social

reciprocity. This makes Food for Life more holistic in approach not only by

addressing our client’s physical needs, but also supporting the social, emotional and

spiritual needs of the person.

Across our six locations, before Covid 19, from June 2019 to March 2020 the average

client access was 584 visits per month. In the month of April 2020, client access

decreased significantly due to Covid9 restrictions, however they have since

stabilised after returning to full operations.  

 

Food for Life has a total of 656 new registrations with an average of 56 client

registrations per month in the last 12 months compared to 73 client registrations per

month from the previous fiscal year 2018-19. 

With the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic and the introduction of social distancing

to contain the spread of the virus, Food for Life had to modify its approach. To

provide the service, Food for Life had to adhere to government policies and

regulations to make sure our clients and volunteers were safe and protected.

Approximately 40% of our clients are 60 years and over, and many of our volunteers

are also of mature years. 

The usual way of shopping where clients would select their products, was changed

to a hamper-based approach. This method minimised contact and interaction

between clients and volunteers as well as making transactions faster. At this time

cafe areas were closed, even though it is a significant part of the program. In the

three month period Food for Life provided 993 hampers in 6 locations.  

With the implementation of the hamper-based approach, one of the challenges

Food for Life experienced was the range of groceries or food items available to our

clients.

Serving and caring for the community

FOOD FOR
LIFE REPORT
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Food products from Foodbank Australia were deferred

due to transport issues. In addition, the program was 

confronted with the issue of preparing ‘precise’ food items

for the hamper because of the different dietary needs of

our clients. However, despite these challenges Food for

Life was able to continue delivering its service to support

the community. For the fiscal year 2019-2020, Food for

Life provided 82,264 meals.

One of the main aspects that contributes significantly in

helping the program to continue and serve our

communities, are the volunteers. Without the dedication

and devotion of our volunteers, Food for Life would not

grow and would not be able to accomplish what it has

this year. Approximately, 950 hours per month are being

invested by different volunteers to ensure that Food for

Life runs every week. One of the volunteer sectors that

contributed significantly this year was students from

Charles Darwin University. In total, 18 students were

engaged for this year. They were studying a Bachelor’s

degree in Humanitarian Aid and VET course in Community

Service.  The total volunteer hours for Food for Life stands

at 11,377.36hrs. If translated into monetary value (based on

$32.85/hour), the value of volunteers to the program is

$409, 252.17. 

Students learned a range of things from connecting with

a diverse group of people, understanding the context of

poverty, community development and exposing

themselves to the reality of providing service to vulnerable

people. As the CDU Students reflected. 

“Through engagement in Food for Life, I encountered

cases which required me to apply the human services

values of respect, self-determination, and fairness.

Integrating theory into practice through a process of

reflection, challenged me to explore my own practice

framework which will continue to develop in my future

work experience. Working in Food for Life helped me to

develop my professional skills. I believe I have maintained

a high-quality of professional conduct and behaved with

dignity and responsibility.”

I was given the opportunity to develop my communication

skills through engaging with clients and talking to

different service providers. I believe that there is cultural

responsiveness and inclusiveness in the Food for Life

program. I had an opportunity to engage with Aboriginal

families and Aboriginal workers. Furthermore, during my

placement period, I had good relations with the other

staff members and volunteers.” - CDU Student

I was able to see how communities, both rural and urban,

suffer due to hunger problems, especially people with

disabilities and old aged people. They suffer immensely as

they cannot afford to sustain nutritious food most often

due to increasing cost of products in the marketplace.

Food for Life has been able to provide nutritious food to

these vulnerable people with minimal cost. 

On top of that, Food for Life responded well during the

COVID-19 pandemic. The program was able to provide

helping hands to people who lost their jobs particularly in

remote and rural communities where food scarcity was

felt due to the crisis. I was involved during the Covid-19

crisis and have seen Food for Life implementing strict

social distancing measures to ensure the safety of

Territorians. Food for Life is a deeply client-centered

initiative. Overall, the program has the commitment to

serve communities in reducing hunger and must be

acknowledged with sheer enthusiasm.” – CDU Student

R O D E R I C K  A L I V I A

FOOD FOR LIFE MANAGER
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The June and July period continued to see a flurry of activity in the Community and

Corporate Relations department (CCR). As we move to the new normal we continue

to see support from our corporate supporters, new donors, community stakeholders

and new affiliates. The redevelopment of the Warehouse Pantry Store and continued

investment of capacity to move forward with the emergency funding from the

Minerals sector continues to demonstrate our capacity to be flexible. This has

positioned Foodbank NT to adapt to the ever-changing dynamic of the post Covid-

19 new normal.

The production of our new newsletters for both Foodbank NT and Food For Life, the

establishment of the new Food For Life Facebook page and our continuance of

positive social media from third party supporters, has seen a steady return of

positive relationships with corporate, community, donors and affiliates.

COMMUNITY RELATIONS

Due to the uncertainty of Covid-19, a number of planned community promotions

have been postponed until such time as community sentiment improves. Covid-19

has also impacted on the potential of volunteer involvement at external promotions.

Currently our engagement strategy will recommence in September and will slowly

build as we move closer to Christmas and our annual Christmas Hamper Food Drive. 

Recently we met with Youthworx NT who thanked us for the opportunity to help their

students gain volunteering experience through the hamper packing for CDU through

the Kindness Shake Promotion. Discussed also was an increase of youth volunteering

from their ‘Transition to Work’ program. This would effectively give additional access

to 300 potential youth volunteers.

July 2010 saw the cancellation of the planned July run to Katherine due to the school

holidays, as teachers and admin staff were on holidays. The planned August run is

nearly fully booked and the Schools Coordinator, Simon McKee, along with the CCR

Manger will travel to Katherine to deliver the orders.

In September Foodbank NT will hold a meet-and-greet BBQ brunch at Food Ladder

in Katherine with the FBNT BBQ trailer. The event will include invitations to NGOs,

not-for profits, schools, corporate supporters and the Mayor of Katherine. The

concept of this event is to consult with stakeholders on the benefits of establishing a

permanent Food Hub in the town and the work that will be needed to establish and

maintain the initiative.

CORPORATE & COMMUNITY
RELATIONS REPORT
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The Foodbank NT CEO and CCR Manager have been

invited to visit the Beswick Community in September to

meet with the manager of the Sunrise Health Corporation

Health Clinic. We also hope to meet with community

elders, the school leadership, and homeland rangers to

discuss food insecurity and the potential of setting up a

community garden with our regional partner Food Ladder.

The trip is in the planning stage and will most likely be

combined with the Katherine promotion. It will require us

to stay in the community on Thursday 1st of October 2020.

Whilst we saw a reduction in community engagement due

to Covid-19, this has allowed Foodbank NT to reassess our

planning and  equipment resources. The support from new

operational funding, has allowed for the purchase of

promotional equipment, branded uniforms, vests, eskies

and promotional items to bolster our capacity for greater

engagement at coming events and promotions. 

Currently Foodbank NT is overstocked with chocolates and

chocolate biscuits. The CCRM has assessed the potential

of establishing a temporary chocolate stand at a number

of Darwin and Palmerston markets. September and

October will see Foodbank NT at the markets with bulk

chocolate available to the public for a donation. Utilising

our brand-new gazebos and uniforms, and large amount

of premium chocolate on hand, the stand will also create

more awareness about Foodbank NT. It will act as an

information point for volunteering and interested

supporters to hold fundraising and food drives for the up-

and-coming Christmas Hamper Appeal. Markets may

include Mindil Beach, Parap, Nightcliff and Palmerston

and possibly Fred’s Pass.

Currently we are assessing a revised strategy for the

annual Christmas Hamper Food Drive. Concerns around

person-to-person contact through the donating of food in

shopping centres is under review. Alternatively, the

Christmas Food Drive may include drive-through donations

points in shopping centre carparks and/or a drive-through

drop off point at Foodbank NT in Berrimah if necessary.

CORPORATE RELATIONS

We would like to acknowledge Engineers Australia (NT) for

the commencement of their 2020 Canned Food Drive

promotion to their membership. Following on from the

success of last year, association members collect canned

food for Foodbank NT and then make structures that are

photographed and judged by the association

administration team. We look forward to their social

media posts once the food drive has concluded.

During the Covid-19 emergency Thrifty Car Rentals

donated the use of a minivan at no charge to Foodbank

NT. It was used for both the Foodbank and Food For Life

Program delivering and picking up donations and

volunteers. After 3 months the vehicle was returned to

Thrifty by the FBNT CEO where he caught up with Thrifty

Operations Manager David Brown. Thrifty have offered us

another vehicle to use during the busy Christmas Hamper

Appeal. Thank you Thrifty!

Earlier this month the CEO and CCRM attended a cheque

presentation ceremony at the Darwin International Airport

Corporation (DIAC) to receive the donation of funds

raised from the outdoor drive-in theatre during the initial

Covid-19 partial lock down. Hosted by the DIAC in

conjunction with the Deck Chair Cinema the fundraising

totalled $10,600 which was evenly split between

Foodbank NT and the Deckchair cinema at $4800 each.

The three-night event was held over a weekend resulting

in a sell-out attendance. Foodbank NT was also invited to

provide a short movie presentation during the intermission.

The movie was very well received and will shortly be

reworked to be more relevant to our Facebook audience.

The newly filmed introduction will feature, the now

experienced presenter, Foodbank CEO Mr Peter Pilt! 

At the presentation, DIAC management expressed their

desire to continue to support Foodbank NT and have

offered free advertising on all TV screens throughout the

airport, which will be followed up and arranged as part of
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 our Christmas Hamper Appeal Campaign. We would like

to thank the DIAC for their support. They plan to hold

another event of this kind in due course.

Earlier this month, the Global Food Banking Network

(GFBN) included a story of Foodbank NT in their

international newsletter relating to our successful

campaign to expand into remote schools and

communities. Featuring the ‘soon to be famous’ image of

the Weetbix Kids from the Laynhapuy Health’s School

Nutrition Program in Arnhem Land, the story demonstrated

the benefit of the funding from the GFBN to Foodbank NT.

We would like to acknowledge Rachel Godley,

coordinator of the School Nutrition Program, for supplying

the photo and the great work that she does for the

Laynhapuy Health Aboriginal Corporation working out of

Yirrkala. Foodbank NT is in the process of responding to

her request for greater support.

In response to an emergency request for breakfast food

to support Laynhapuy Health’s School nutrition program in

Yirrkala and surrounding homelands, Foodbank NT, with

support from Sanitarium and South32, will send an

emergency pallet of Weetbix to the region. The

Laynhapuy Homelands are located in east Arnhem Land,

approximately 650 km east of Darwin in the Northern

Territory. The tyranny of distance which includes a 1000km

(11 hour) road trip for freight, places extreme pressure on

food budgets to support the school nutrition programs

that are currently undertaken by the organisation. 

Both Sanitarium, who have donated the Weetbix, and

South32, who have donated the freight costs, are major

contributors to Foodbank NT. They have both indicated a

strong desire to support Foodbank NT's remote

communities program in the Northern Territory and will

continue to do so especially whilst the pandemic is active

in Australia. Foodbank NT acknowledges that without the

support of national corporates like Sanitarium and

South32, the capacity to respond to emergency requests

such as this would be virtually impossible. It is more

important than ever that we work together to eliminate

hunger in the Northern Territory and this is an example on

how it can be done. 

INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL RELATIONS

With the hiring of Simon McKee as the new Foodbank NT

Schools Program Coordinator, the CCRM has been able

to focus on increasing our presence, through taking a

more proactive approach utilising basic grassroots

community marketing strategies. The establishment of our

new community newsletters to promote Foodbank NT,

Food For Life and the Warehouse Pantry creates

opportunity to broaden our brand exposure at a

community level, promote our initiatives and most

importantly, promote our supporters which includes donors

and sponsors. The inclusion of our donors/sponsors logos

in an ‘advertising format’ not only adds colour and white

space but also a touch of professionalism. Additionally, it

demonstrates to our supporters and to the public that we

value their support and are prepared to promote their

support by providing hard copy tangible evidence.

The Foodbank NT brand and our work in the community

continues to enjoy favour from both the community and

corporate sector. This good standing should be credited

to the ongoing passion and commitment of the

management, staff and volunteers that work tirelessly day

after day. The volume of outgoing food reaching a peak

of 86,000 meals per month, I believe, is a testament to

this. This combined with increased support from the

corporate sector, increased giving by the community and

increased volunteer man power from affiliates and

supporters, places Foodbank NT with the capacity

required to tackle the predicted surge in need in the lead

up to Christmas. Our new promotional equipment and

capacity are all in place and stand ready to facilitate the

event and promotion plan as we move to 2021. 

P A U L  W Y A T T

COMMUNITY AND CORPORATE 
RELATIONS MANAGER
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SCHOOLS
PROGRAM REPORT
What to do with huge 15kg bags of Barra Wings or frozen Jewfish fillets, each fillet being 2

feet long! Having to defrost the whole 15kg and eat it is no mean feat! 

Solution: Call our remote schools. They were snapped up very quickly by Jilkminggan

school.

The next challenge was to get these large odd shaped frozen bags to “Jilk” via the

courier. 

Solution: A number of supermarket polystyrene veggie boxes, a stanley knife, lots of tape

and some creative cutting and joining!

 

For the Schools Program, getting the food to the schools as a practical expression of the

Gospel is our highest priority! Throughout 2019/2020 the Schools Program has continued

the intensive but rewarding task of facilitating the delivery of food to students at urban

and remote schools in the NT. 

It is particularly exciting to see newly affiliated schools and their students benefiting from

the nutritional value this food brings which is a critical contribution to their general health,

learning outcomes, overall development and place in their community and our nation. 

A highlight of this has been the feedback and gratitude from our affiliates in the school

community. This in turn has led to other schools seeking to partner and have their students

enjoy the generosity of God through the contribution of the greater Foodbank community

including donors, supporters, volunteers, staff and the Board.

Schools Program - Urban Affiliates

Our urban School Program currently has 18 urban schools in the greater Darwin region.

Marrara Christian College being the largest of these, purchasing on a regular basis. The

college has 9 Family Group Homes, each of which is individually affiliated to purchase

food from us. The Family Group Homes each cater for up to 10 boarding students from

remote indigenous communities across the Top End. The College and other urban schools

purchase directly from the Foodbank shop in Berrimah.

Affiliates in the Urban School Program include two childcare centres and one early

learning centre, the most recent affiliate being welcomed is Humpty Doo Childcare

Centre. It was exciting to see their Director and staff come into the shop and warehouse

for the first time. After donning their vests, they browsed the shop shelves, peered into

freezers and wandered the isles of the warehouse with their trolley. Looks of amazement

and excitement lit up their faces. Whilst we often think of food, we may not immediately

think of bulk bandaids! - It is the small things that often matter. In addition to their

intended use, right from their invention, a simple bandaid has dried up many a tear for our

little ones! 
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They left with their shopping, impressed with the (newly

refitted) shop and the warehouse, excited to be able to

use our services for the children at their childcare centre.

Our total Urban child/student-based affiliation stands at

36.

 

Schools Program - Remote Affiliates

Our remote School Program currently has 12 remote

affiliated schools and 2 affiliated childcare centres.

Tiwi College is the affiliate who consistently has the

largest orders from remote schools. Tiwi College has 8

boarding houses. Each boarding house consists of up to

15 students. Since joining with us in September 2019 they

have placed orders on a weekly basis. The total

child/student-based affiliation stands at 14.

A significant recent and exciting development has been

the expansion of the warehouse to facilitate the transition

from weekly and fortnightly ordering/dispatch for the

remote schools to a monthly schedule. Overall this has

been well received by the schools, and will be refined

over time. 

Carol Quill has passed the baton for the coordination of

the Schools Program to Simon McKee. Carol devoted

significant time and energy in implementing significant

initiatives and procedures to the program as a volunteer

and staff member and the legacy of her contribution and

passion will be built on by others in the future. Simon

comes to the program with extensive experience working

with remote indigenous communities and has also worked

in schools, Christian ministry and the public service. Simon

has largely devoted the past 9 years to partnering with

Indigenous Australians in the NT and looks forward to

being able to continue this whilst coordinating the

Schools Program.

 

 

The Future

The next 12 months will involve priority targeting 4

particular schools in the Darwin urban area and others in

remote parts of the NT particularly those who use

Katherine as a transport hub, these include schools as far

as Yuendumu, and others on the Savannah Way and

Roper Hwy. The targeted urban schools are

demographically placed in a low socio- economic area.

These schools have an average indigenous student ratio

of 42% , and students who speak another language other

than English is 62%. The targeted remote schools have

almost exclusive indigenous student ratios.

It is crucial for the School’s Program that close working

relationships are maintained and developed. It is also

essential that reviews of procedures and practices are

continuously undertaken and any new efficiencies

identified and implemented.

 

Both of these together, with the continued support of the

greater Foodbank community, will enable the program to

consolidate and grow and ensure that nutritious food is

provided to those who need it and rely on it. This will also

continue to ensure that through the Schools program the

good standing of Foodbank NT in the school community is

maintained and enhanced. 

S I M O N  M C K E E

SCHOOLS PROGRAM  MANAGER 
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PHOEBE  VAN  BENTUM  -  CHA I R

BRE T T  M IDENA  -  D I R EC TOR

Phoebe joined the Board as a director in November 2017 and has been Chair since October

2018. Phoebe's professional experience has focused on the charity and not for profit sector,

particularly in the area of education. Previously she worked as a solicitor advising charities, not

for profits , independent schools and churches. During this time she was also a founding

director and company secretary of the Australian Charity Law Association. Phoebe is an active

member of Darwin Baptist Church and currently works as the Chief Executive Officer of NT

Christin Schools.

 

Brett Midena BA/LLB (ANU) has been a practising lawyer for 40 years and, since July 2000, the

principal of Midena Lawyers in Darwin. His work has predominantly concerned property,

community and commercial development. He is a member of the Casuarina Baptist Church and

is a director of the NT Dance Company.

 

L AUREN  TA T T ER SA L L  -  D I R EC TOR

NE I L  WR IGHT  -  D I R EC TOR

Lauren joined the Board in October 2018. She brings a focus on sound corporate governance

and financial responsibility, founded on her professional experience in her full-time role as a

solicitor and her background in accounting and business administration. Since moving to Darwin

in early 2016, Lauren has been an active member of Cornerstone Christian Fellowship in Howard

Springs. Lauren is passionate about social justice and also volunteers with the Darwin

Community Legal Service. 

Matt joined the Board in 2017. Matt is a primary producer with a property at Lake Bennett

growing primarily green pawpaw and bananas. Matt exports to markets in Melbourne, Pert,

Adelaide and Sydney and also sells his produce through local weekend markets. Matt attends

Crossroads Christian Church in Palmerston and is also a regular donor of Foodbank NT. 

 

Neil joined the Board in October 2018 as the representative for BUNT. Neil was born in Papua

New Guinea and moved to Darwin in 1974 just before Cyclone Tracy. He is married with three

grown up children. Neil is currently serving as pastor at Cornerstone Christian Fellowship where

he celebrated 10 years in that role in November 2019. Before his time at CCF, Neil worked as a

landscaper, policeman with NT Police, fireman with NT Fire Services and as manager of a tree

removal company. 

 MATTEW  PHEENEY  -  D I R EC TOR

BOARD MEMBERS
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PE T ER  P I L T  -  CEO

RODER I CK  A L I V I A  -  FOOD  FOR  L I F E  MANAGER  

BAPTIST CARE STAFF 

PE T ER  CHAND LER  -  GENERA L  MANAGER  OF  OPERAT I ONS

PAU L  WYAT T  -  COMMUN I T Y  AND  CORPORATE  RE LA T I ONS  

MANAGER

Peter joined the Baptist Care NT team in January of 2020 as the new CEO. Moving up from the Gold Coast,

Peter has extensive experience in leadership in the church space as well as a decade long position as the

International Director of an NGO called Global Care. Peter has a track record of being others focussed and

so his role here at BCNT marries perfectly with his heart and motive to make a difference in the lives of

others.  As a ‘newby’ to the Territory, Peter has enjoyed exploring the great beauty of the entire Territory,

recently completing the 4000km round trip to Uluru and back simply so he could walk around the rock.  

Peter has lived in the NT for over 35 years after being posted here for the RAAF as a Police Dog Handler in

1985. Peter joined Foodbank NT just over three years ago after serving as a member of the Northern Territory

Legislative Assembly from 2008 – 2016. Peter held many ministerial portfolios, including Deputy Chief Minister,

Minister for Police, Fire and Emergency Services and Education. Since arriving in the Territory, Peter has

worked for both Darwin and Palmerston Council’s, The Australian Bureau of Statistics and the Defence

Housing Authority, in addition to owning and operating a small business. His work in government and the

private sector provides Foodbank NT experience,  insight and leverage. Peter has an extensive network of

contacts that provides additional support on operational matters. 

Paul is a long term Territorian. He has lived in the NT with his family since the early 1970's. Paul has worked with

BCNT for over two years and enjoys the opportunity it gives him to use his various skills and networks to help

others who are less fortunate than himself. Combined with working with likeminded people, Paul brings an

energy and enthusiasm to his role that is innovative and visionary. 

Rod is the manager of Food for Life Program of Baptist Care NT. He holds a Batchelor of Science Degree in

Forestry and units in Master of Management from the University of the Philippines.  He worked with non-

government organisations and research institutions in the Philippines with a focus on community development,

environment, indigenous communities and indigenous knowledge systems. Before joining Baptist Care NT he

worked with Compassion International in the Philippines for nine years managing 11 child development centres

in different areas. He is passionate about engaging with a diverse group of people and in supporting local

churches to serve the community. 

S IMON  MCKEE  - SCHOOL S  PROGRAM  MANAGER  

Simon is married to Tirzah and has 2 adult daughters. Simon has largely devoted the past 9 years to

partnering with Indigenous Australians and having recently joined Foodbank NT is excited to be able to

continue this partnership coordinating the schools program. Simon has extensive experience working in

Christian ministry with remote Indigenous communities and has also worked in schools, hospitals, adult

corrections and juvenile justice. Simon has also worked in the public service for 20 years in the fields of

Geographic Information Systems, remote sensing and hydrography. Downtime for Simon includes working in

his shed, and camping with family and friends. 
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A L I  BOWES  -  WAREHOUSE  ASS I S TANT

GA I L  BARRY  -  WAREHOUSE  MANAGER

NAND I N I  P I L L A I  -  F I NANCE  OF F I C ER

Nandini, better known as Maya, is passionate about working in the NFP sector and has spent most of her time

working and volunteering with different NFP's and universities. She is a data driven person and loves to analyze

the why factor as she crunches the numbers. Her journey with Foodbank NT started as volunteer and now as

part of the team. Outside the office, Maya is a foodie and is always looking to learn new ways to create

dishes with a twist so there is no wastage, a value shared by Foodbank NT. Maya has lived in various cities in

Australia and appreciates the different opportunities each place has given her to explore and be connected

to the local community. 

Gail began as a volunteer with Baptist Care NT in March 2018, by September she was working as an employee

and by October 2019 she became acting Warehouse Supervisor. In her time at Foodbank NT, Gail has found

her work most satisfying when she is able to help people who are in need. Working at Foodbank has opened

her eyes to the ongoing need in the community across the Northern Territory. Gail is grateful to work with an

amazing bunch of people, both staff and volunteers, who are likeminded about serving the NT. 

Ali volunteered for 16 months at Baptist Care NT before becoming an employee in November 2019. Ali is

passionate about helping people and thrives in her work at BCNT as she is able to meet the needs of many in

the community. Ali loves connecting with staff, volunteers and customers. She has lived in the Territory since

October 2001 with her partner and their son, Billy who is 12 years old. Ali loves the Territory, the weather and

the laidback lifestyle. 

J EM IMA  B I SHOP  -  ADM IN I S T RA T I ON

Growing up in the greater Darwin area, Jemima's love for the Territory and people is evident in her role with

staff and volunteers at BCNT. Jemima values the diversity of Territorians and the many different places they

come from, all working together with respect and unity. Jemima loves working with the BCNT community, staff

and volunteers and is passionate about tackling the challenges that arise in order to reduce food insecurity in

the NT. Jemima lives in Darwin with her husband and enjoys the Wet season rains

 

Haleema has been in the Territory 69 years, 64 of them in Darwin. She has seen many changes in that time.

She loves working with all the staff at Foodbank and admires their efforts to support those in need. Haleema

started as a volunteer with Baptist Care before joining the staff as an employee. She continues to volunteer

in the shop when she finishes her work for the day . Haleema has never seen Darwin so low in finances and in

so great a need for food support. Haleema loves living in the Northern Territory as she enjoys the beautiful dry

season weather. 

 

HALEEMA  DAUTH   -  C L EANER
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Mission Australia - Stringy Bark AOD

Darwin Christian Ministries Inc

Forster Foundation for Drug Rehabilitation

(Banyan House)

Charles Darwin University

John Stokes Non Profit Organization

Salvation Army Anula Doorways Program

Salvation Army Palmerston Doorways Program

Lactalis Australia (Formerly known                    

 as Parmalat)

Coles Casuarina Square

Goodman Fielder

 

CONTRIBUTORS

 

RECIPIENTS

Mission Australia - Sobering Up Shelter

Catholic Care NT

St Vincent de Paul Ozanam House

Missionaries of Charity

Christian Mission Fellowship Church NT

OUR 

FOOD

DISTRIBUTION

NETWORK

Woolworths Leanyer

INGHAMS

Coles Casuarina Village

34

THANK YOU TO ALL 
OUR CONTRIBUTORS

top top



N A N D I N I  P I L L A I
FINANCE OFFICER

FINANCE
REPORT

It is pleasing to report that despite the challenges

that we have faced this year in the wake of Covid19

we have continued to deliver on our commitment to

reduce food insecurity in the Northern Territory. We

have continued to provide increasing volumes of

nutritious food to meet the demand for food relief at

the lowest possible cost. Throughout this time

Foodbank NT has continued to expand into remote

schools and communities. Thanks to your financial

support, we were able to act quickly and continue to

meet an emergency food demand during the height

of the pandemic.

Our Team at FoodBank NT has the strength and

focus to meet any challenges we faces with

confidence and our committed to make ourselves

financially sustainable organization in upcoming

year. 

  

35



AUDITOR'S

 REPORT

36



BAPTIST CARE NORTHERN TERRITORY

ABN: 64 141 539 442

Financial Report For The Year Ended

30 June 2020



ABN: 64 141 539 442

Financial Report For The Year Ended
30 June 2020

CONTENTS Page

Directors' Report 1

Auditor's Independence Declaration 3

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income 4

Statement of Financial Position 5

Statement of Changes in Equity 6

Statement of Cash Flows 7

Notes to the Financial Report 8

Director's Declaration 28

Independent Auditor's Report 29

BAPTIST CARE NORTHERN TERRITORY



Date appointed Date ceased Meeting attended
Nov-17 - 14 (eligible: 14)

Dec-16 Sep-19 1 (eligible: 3)
Nov-17 - 11 (eligible: 14)
Oct-18 Nov-19 6 (eligible: 6)
Oct-18 - 14 (eligible: 14)
Oct-18 - 13 (eligible: 14)
Mar-20 - 3 (eligible: 4)

No other significant changes in the nature of the Company's activities occurred during the year.

Brett Midena

Phoebe van Bentum
(Chair Oct 2018 to date)
Terry Mills
Matthew Pheeney
John Guenther
Lauren Tattersall
Neil Wright

The Company also engaged in two complementary ministries, the Food for Life program and Schools Program.

The Food for Life program operates in partnership with local churches in the greater Darwin region to make food directly available to
individuals in need via a mobile food pantry and permanent store at Casuarina Baptist Church. The Food for Life program is not
funded by government, and relies on private donations, support from interstate Baptist Care organisations and in kind support.

The Schools Program supplies food to Northern Territory schools to feed students and partners with schools in educating about food
and food waste. The Schools program is not funded by government, and relies on nominal handling fees paid by schools, private
donations, support from interstate Baptist Care organisations and in kind support. 

The names of each person who has been a director during the year and to the date of this report are:

The Company's activities from1 February 2020 were impacted by the Coronavirus (COVID-19). Events  normally run by the Company 

equivalent of over 1,500 meals to Territorians in need every day though 122 charity, NGO and school affiliates. In recent months and 
due to the crisis Foodbank NT has seen a 61% increase in food distribution! This is the equivalent of 80,151 more meals. This 
increase is unprecedented and could not be achieved without support from our volunteers and supporters. 

After balance date events

The impact of the Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic is ongoing and while it had little financial impact on the Company up to 30 June 
2020, it is not practicable to estimate the potential impact, positive or negative, after the reporting date. The situation is rapidly 
developing and is dependent on measures imposed by the Australian Government and other countries, such as maintaining social 
distancing requirements, quarantine, travel restrictions and any economic stimulus that may be provided.
No other matter or circumstance has arisen since 30 June 2020 that has significantly affected, or may significantly affect the 
Company's operations, the results of those operations, or the Company's state of affairs in future financial years.

Likely future developments

The Company is engaged in discussions with Baptist Care Australia and interstate Baptist Care organisations regarding potential

Operating result

The profit attributable to Members for the year amounted to $177,247 (2019: $27,525) including non-cash equivalent items. This has
been achieved through the hard work of the Company and the significant support received from the community, the Northern Territory
Government and the interstate Baptist Care family. Contributing to the increase in profit includes a Cash Flow Boost incentive from
Government ($62,500) and the South32 donation received ($100,000).

The Company is a charity registered with the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission (ACNC) and does not distribute
profits to its members.

Directors 

Significant changes in operations during the financial year

The largest program was and remains the Northern Territory arm of Foodbank. This involves the provision of a central
donations/collection point for "surplus" food for distribution to not-for-profit organisations, who then provide this food to disadvantaged
people who would otherwise go hungry. The Foodbank program is funded by a Northern Territory government grant, nominal handling
fees paid by other not-for-profit organisations who purchase Foodbank supplies, private donations, support from interstate Baptist
Care organisations and in kind support.  

In the financial year, the Company expanded operations to the Katherine region.

BAPTIST CARE NORTHERN TERRITORY

ABN: 64 141 539 442

Directors Report
The directors of Baptist Care Northern Territory (Company) present this report together with the financial statements of the Company 
for the financial year ended 30 June 2020.

Review of operations
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September 2020Dated this day of

Director

Director

financial report.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors

2

Lauren Tattersall, Director

10th

Phoebe van Bentum, Chair



 

 

 
 
AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION UNDER SECTION 307C  
OF THE CORPORATIONS ACT 2001 AND SECTION 60-40 OF THE AUSTRALIAN CHARTITIES AND NOT-FOR-PROFITS 
COMMISSION ACT 2012 
 
TO THE DIRECTORS OF BAPTIST CARE NORTHERN TERRITORY 
 
 
I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, during the year ended 30 June 2020 there have been: 
 
(i) No contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations Act 2001 and 

the Australian Charities Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012, in relation to the audit; and 
 

(ii) No contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit. 
 
 

 
Nexia Edwards Marshall NT 
Chartered Accountants 
 

 
Noel Clifford 
Partner 
 
 
Dated 10 September 2020 

 



Note 2020 2019

$ $

Revenue and Other Income
Community distribution trading revenue 2A  338,944  311,895 
Donations in kind 2B  758,757  574,260 

Other income 2C  814,427  613,706 
Total operating revenues  1,912,128  1,499,861 

Operating Expenses
Employment expenses 3A  1,384,678  1,120,156 
Depreciation 3B  114,151  70,882 
Other expenses 3C  236,052  281,298 

Total operating expenses  1,734,881  1,472,336 

Profit for the year  177,247  27,525 

Other comprehensive income                       -   - 

Total Other Comprehensive  Income - - 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year  177,247  27,525 

NET CURRENT YEAR PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO MEMBERS 
OF THE ENTITY  177,247  27,525 

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO 
MEMBERS OF THE ENTITY  177,247  27,525 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial 
statements.

BAPTIST CARE NORTHERN TERRITORY
ABN: 64 141 539 442

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME                                                                                                      
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020
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Note 2020 2019
$ $

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents 4  353,562  80,728 
Trade and Other Receivables 5  23,606  9,203 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS  377,168  89,931 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

Property, Plant and Equipment 6  285,665  336,872 
Right of Use Assets 7  300,730 - 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS  586,395  336,872 

TOTAL ASSETS  963,563  426,803 

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and Other Payables 8  129,971  71,767 
Lease Liabilities 9  79,576 - 
Employee Provisions 10  38,368  43,660 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES  247,915  115,427 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Lease Liabilities 9  225,819 - 
Employee Provisions 10  7,764  6,558 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES  233,583  6,558 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  481,498  121,985 

NET ASSETS  482,065  304,818 

EQUITY

Retained Earnings  482,065  304,818 

TOTAL EQUITY  482,065  304,818 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial 
statements.

BAPTIST CARE NORTHERN TERRITORY
ABN: 64 141 539 442

                STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION                                                                                                             
AS AT 30 JUNE 2020
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Retained 
Earnings

Total 
Equity

Note $ $

Balance at 1 July 2018  277,293  277,293 

Comprehensive income:
Profit for the year  27,525  27,525 
Other comprehensive income for the year - - 

Total comprehensive income attributable to Members of the entity for the year  27,525  27,525 

Balance at 30 June 2019  304,818  304,818 

Balance at 1 July 2019  304,818  304,818 
Comprehensive income:
Profit for the year  177,247  177,247 
Other comprehensive income for the year - - 

Total comprehensive income attributable to Members of the entity for the year  177,247  177,247 

Balance at 30 June 2020  482,065  482,065 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

BAPTIST CARE NORTHERN TERRITORY
ABN: 64 141 539 442                                                                                                                                                          

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020
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Note 2020 2019
$ $

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from Government grants, interstate Baptist Care 
donations, fundraising, other donations and customers  1,301,202  735,676 
Payments to Foodbank, suppliers and employees (962,173) (902,239)
Interest received  2,019  3,123 

Net cash provided by (used in)  operating  activities 13  341,048 (163,440)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payment for property, plant and equipment (19,984) (70,404)

Net cash used in investing activities (19,984) (70,404)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Payments for lease liabilities (48,230) - 

Net cash used in financing activities (48,230) - 

Net increase (decrease) in cash held  272,834 (233,844)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year  80,728  314,572 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year 4  353,562  80,728 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial 
statements.

BAPTIST CARE NORTHERN TERRITORY
ABN: 64 141 539 442                                                                                                                                 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020
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BAPTIST CARE NORTHERN TERRITORY
ABN: 64 141 539 442

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a)

 -                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        
 -                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        
 - 

 - 

 - 

 - 

Income are recognised as revenue when the Company obtains control over the asset comprising the receipt.
The Company has applied AASB 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers (AASB 15) and AASB 1058: Income of Not-for-Profit 
Entities(AASB1058) using the cumulative effective method of initially applying AASB15 and AASB1058 as an adjustment to the 
opening balance of equity at 1 July 2019. Therefore, the comparative information has not been restated and continues to be 
presented under AASB 118: Revenue and AASB 1004: Contributions. The details of accounting policies under AASB118 and 
AASB1004 are disclosed separately since they are different from those under AASB 15 and AASB 1058.The impact of changes is 
disclosed in Note 1(t).

In the Current Year
Contributed Assets 

The financial statements cover Baptist Care Northern Territory as an individual entity, incorporated and domiciled in Australia. Baptist Care
Northern Territory is operating pursuant to the Corporations Act 2001 and the Australian Charities and Not for Profits Commission Act  2012.

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards Reduced Disclosure Requirements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB), the Corporations Act 2001 and the
Australian Charities and Not- for- profits Commission Act 2012. The Company is a not-for-profit company for financial reporting purposes under
Australian Accounting Standards.

Australian Accounting Standards set out accounting policies that the AASB has concluded would result in financial statements containing
relevant and reliable information about transactions, events and conditions. Material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
financial statements are presented below and have been consistently applied unless stated otherwise.

The financial statements, except for the cash flow information, have been prepared on an accruals basis and are based on historical costs,
modified, where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities. The
amounts presented in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar.

The financial statements were authorised for issue on         September 2020  by the Directors of the Company.

Baptist Care Northern Territory applies Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements as set out in AASB 1053 :
Application of Tiers of Australian Accounting Standards.

Accounting Policies

Revenue and Other Income

The Company receives assets from the government and other parties for Nil or nominal consideration in order to further its 
objectives. These assets are recognised in accordance with the recognition requirements of other applicable accounting standards 
(AASB 9, AASB 16, AASB 116 and AASB 138).

On initial recognition of an asset, the Company recognises related amounts (being contributions by owners, lease liability, financial 
instruments, provisions, revenue or contract liability arising from a contract with a customer).

The Company recognises income immediately in profit or loss as the difference between initial carrying amount of the asset and the 
related amounts.

Operating Grants, Donations and Bequests

When the Company receives operating grant revenue, donations or bequests, it assesses whether the contract is enforceable and 
has sufficiently specific performance obligations in accordance with AASB 15.

When both these conditions are satisfied, the Company :                                                                                              
identifies each performance obligation relating to the grant;
recognises a contract liability for its obligations under the agreement; and
 recognises revenue as it satisfies its performance obligations.

When the contract is not enforceable or does not have sufficiently specific performance obligations, the Company:

recognises the asset received in accordance with the recognition requirements of other applicable accounting standards      
(AASB 9, AASB 116 and AASB138);

recognises related amounts (being contributions by owners, lease liability, financial instruments, provisions, revenue or 
contract liability arising from a contract with a customer); and

recognises income immediately in profit or loss as the difference between the initial carrying amount of the asset and the 
related amount.
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BAPTIST CARE NORTHERN TERRITORY
ABN: 64 141 539 442

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont.)

(a)

Donations in kind:

Donations in cash:

Donations in kind:

Donations in cash:

Donations in kind - food: the Company receives food from various organisations to run individual programs and to distribute to
local communities and to other organisations for their distributions to communities and individuals. The Company recognises
the value of the food distributed to communities and organisations as a donation in kind and measures the value at $6 per kg
replacement value for food items. The donation is recognised as revenue in the statement of profit and loss. 

Donations in kind - volunteer wages: the company receives services of volunteers to assist in the distribution of foods and to
run individual programs. The hours spent by volunteers are recognised as a donation in kind and are measured based on
standard award rates. The cost associated with the volunteers' hours is recorded as an expense, equal to the amount
recognised initially in donations in kind.

Donations and bequests are recognised as revenue when received. 

The Company recognises income in profit or loss when or as the Company satisfies its obligations under the terms of the grant.

Baptist Care Northern Territory ("the Company") receives donations in kind and in cash:

Capital Grant

When the Company receives a capital grant, it recognises a liability for the excess of the initial carrying amount of the financial 
asset received over any related amounts (being contributions by owners, lease liability, financial instruments, provisions, revenue or 
contract liability arising from a contract with a customer) recognised under other Australian Accounting Standards.

Interest Income

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax.

A receivable will be recognised when the goods are delivered. The Company's right to consideration is deemed unconditional at this 
time as only the passage of time is required before payment of that consideration is due.

If a contract liability is recognised as a related amount above, the Company recognises income in profit or loss when or as it 
satisfies its obligations under the contract.

Baptist Care Northern Territory ("the Company") receives donations in kind and in cash:

Revenue and Other Income (Cont.)

In the Comparative Period

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

Dividend Income

The Company recognises dividends in profit or loss only when the right to receive payment is established.

Income from Sale of Goods

Revenue is recognised when control of the products has transferred to the customer. For such transactions, this is when the 
products are delivered to the customers. Discounts are not provided with the sale of these items.

Donations in kind - food: the Company receives food from various organisations to run individual programs and to distribute to
local communities and to other organisations for their distributions to communities and individuals. The Company recognises
the value of the food distributed to communities and organisations as a donation in kind and measures the value at $6 per kg
replacement value for food items. The donation is recognised as revenue in the statement of profit and loss. 

Donations in kind - volunteer wages: the company receives services of volunteers to assist in the distribution of foods and to
run individual programs. The hours spent by volunteers are recognised as a donation in kind and are measured based on
standard award rates. The cost associated with the volunteers' hours is recorded as an expense, equal to the amount
recognised initially in donations in kind.

Donations and bequests are recognised as revenue when received. 
Non-reciprocal grant revenue is recognised in profit or loss when the company obtains control of the grant and it is probable that the
economic benefits gained from the grant will flow to the company and the amount of the grant can be measured reliably. 

If conditions are attached to the grant which must be satisfied before it is eligible to receive the contribution, the recognition of the
grant as revenue will be deferred until those conditions are satisfied.

When grant revenue is received whereby the company incurs an obligation to deliver economic value directly back to the
contributor, this is considered a reciprocal transaction and the grant revenue is recognised in the statement of financial position as a
liability until the service has been delivered to the contributor, otherwise the grant is recognised as income on receipt.

9



BAPTIST CARE NORTHERN TERRITORY
ABN: 64 141 539 442

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont.)

(a)

(b)
Inventories are held for distribution and comprise food items:

Donated: 

Purchased at cost:

(c)

Depreciation Rate Life (years)

Depreciation

10 - 40%

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These gains or losses are 
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. When revalued assets are sold, amounts included in the revaluation 
surplus relating to that asset are transferred to retained earnings.

Inventories 

Property, Plant and Equipment
Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value as indicated, less, where applicable, accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses.

The Company receives donated foods via Foodbank Northern Territory, Woolworths, Coles and Other Suppliers. This 
inventory is used by Baptist Care Northern Territory to run its programs of Foodbank NT, Food for Life and Schools. Donated 
inventory is measured for inventory/asset purposes at realisable value which management considers to be nil. On sale a 
donation and expense of $6 per kg is recognised. 

To replenish stock quantity, the Company buys food items at cost from local food suppliers. The cost of such inventories is 
recorded using the weighted average cost method. 

Vehicles 20%

Plant and Equipment

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets are: 

Class of Fixed Asset
Buildings 3 - 10%

Plant and equipment are measured on the cost basis and are therefore carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any 
accumulated impairment losses. 

 In the event the carrying amount of leasehold improvements and plant and equipment is greater than their estimated recoverable 
amount, the carrying amount is written down immediately to their estimated recoverable amount and impairment losses are 
recognised  in profit or loss.  A formal assessment of recoverable amount is made when impairment indicators are present (refer to 
Note 1(f) for details of impairment).

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets, including buildings and capitalised lease assets, but excluding freehold land, is 
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the asset's useful life to the Company commencing from the time the asset is held ready 
for use. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of either the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated 
useful lives of the improvements.

Plant and equipment that have been contributed at no cost, or for nominal cost, are valued and recognised at the fair value of the 
asset at the date it is acquired.

Plant and equipment

Dividend revenue is recognised when the right to receive a dividend has been established.
Revenue from the rendering of a service is recognised upon the delivery of the service to the customers.
All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax.

Baptist Care Northern Territory receives non-reciprocal contributions of assets from the government and other parties for a zero or
a nominal value. These assets are recognised at fair value on the date of acquisition in the statement of financial position, with a
corresponding amount of income recognised in profit or loss.

Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest method, which for floating rate financial assets is the rate inherent in the
instrument. 

Revenue and Other Income (Cont.)
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BAPTIST CARE NORTHERN TERRITORY
ABN: 64 141 539 442

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont.)

(d)

- 

-

-

-

-

-

(e)

variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the commencement 
date;

the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options; 

payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate the lease.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the lease term or useful life of the underlying asset whichever is the shortest. Where a 
lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Company anticipates to 
exercise a purchase option, the specific asset is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset.

Initially the lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments still to be paid at commencement date. The lease 
payments are discounted at the interest rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses the 
incremental borrowing rate.

fixed lease payments less any lease incentives;

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Company assess if the contract contains or is a lease. If there is a lease present, a right-of-use asset 
and a corresponding lease liability is recognised by the Company where the Company is a lessee. However all contracts that are 
classified as short term leases (lease with remaining lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets are 
recognised as an operating lease on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

lease payments under extension options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options; and

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability as mentioned above, any lease 
payments made at or before the commencement date as well as any initial direct costs. The subsequent measurement of the right-
of-use assets is at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are as follows :

The Company as Lessee

Concessionary Leases

Financial Instruments

Initial Recognition and Measurement

For leases that have significantly below market terms and conditions principally to enable the Company to further its objectives 
(commonly known as peppercorn / concessionary leases), the Company has adopted the temporary relief under AASB 2018-8 and 
measures the right of use assets at cost on initial recognition. 

Trade receivables are initially measured at the transaction price if the trade receivables do not contain significant financing 
component or if the practical expedient was applied as specified in AASB 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

A financial liability is measured at fair value through profit or loss if the financial liability is:  a contingent consideration of an acquirer 
in a business combination to which AASB 3: Business Combinations applies; held for trading; or initially designated as at fair value 
through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at: amortised cost; or fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions to the 
instrument. For financial assets, this is the date that the Company commits itself to either the purchase or sale of the asset (ie trade 
date accounting is adopted).

Financial instruments (except for trade receivables) are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, except where the 

immediately. Where available, quoted prices in an active market are used to determine fair value. In other circumstances, valuation 
techniques are adopted.

Financial liabilities 

Classification and Subsequent Measurement

All other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

11



BAPTIST CARE NORTHERN TERRITORY
ABN: 64 141 539 442

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont.)

(e)

Derecognition
Derecognition refers to the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability from the statement of financial 
position.

Financial Instruments (Cont.)

If taking the change in credit risk in other comprehensive income enlarges or creates an accounting mismatch, then these gains or 
losses should be taken to profit or loss rather than other comprehensive income.

Financial assets are subsequently measured at: amortised cost; fair value through other comprehensive income; or fair value 
through profit or loss

Measurement is on the basis of two primary criteria: the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset; and the 
business model for managing the financial assets.

By default, all other financial assets that do not meet the measurement conditions of amortised cost and fair value through other 
comprehensive income are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss.

The initial designation of financial instruments to measure at fair value through profit or loss is a one-time option on initial 
classification and is irrevocable until the financial asset is derecognised.

Equity Instruments
At initial recognition,, as long as the equity instrument is not held for trading or is not a contingent consideration recognised by an 
acquirer in a business combination to which AASB 3 applies, the Company makes an irrevocable election to measure any 
subsequent changes in fair value of the equity instruments in other comprehensive income, while the dividend revenue is received 
on underlying equity instruments investments will still be recognised in profit or loss.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised at settlement date in accordance with the 
Company's accounting policy.

The effective interest method is used to allocate interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest 
rate is the internal rate of return of the financial asset or liability. That is, it is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future 
cash flows through the expected life of the instrument to the net carrying amount at initial recognition.

A financial liability cannot be reclassified.

Financial assets

A financial asset that meets the following conditions is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income: 
the contractual terms within the financial asset give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding on specified dates; and the business model for managing the financial asset comprises both 
contractual cash flows collection and the selling of the financial asset.

The Company initially designates a financial instrument as measured at fair value through profit or loss if: it eliminates or 

otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases; it is in 
accordance with the documented risk management or investment strategy and information about the groupings is documented 
appropriately, so the performance of the financial liability that is part of a group of financial liabilities or financial assets can be 
managed and evaluated consistently on a fair value basis; and it is a hybrid contract that contains an embedded derivative that 
significantly modifies the cash flows otherwise required by the contract.

A financial asset that meets the following conditions is subsequently measured at amortised cost: the financial asset is managed 
solely to collect contractual cash flows; and the contractual terms within the financial asset give rise to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding on specified dates.

A financial liability is held for trading if it is: incurred for the purpose of repurchasing or repaying in the near term; part of a portfolio 
where there is an actual pattern of short-term profit taking; or a derivative financial instrument (except for a derivative that is in a 
financial guarantee contract or a derivative that is in effective hedging relationships). 

Any gains or losses arising on changes in fair value are recognised in profit or loss to the extent that they are not part of a 
designated hedging relationship.

income and is not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Instead, it is transferred to retained earnings upon derecognition of the 
financial liability. 
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BAPTIST CARE NORTHERN TERRITORY
ABN: 64 141 539 442

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont.)

(e)

-

-
- 
-

-

-
-

-

-

-

-

-

- if there has been no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance of the 
financial instrument at an amount equal to 12 month expected credit losses.

On derecognition of a debt instrument classified as fair value through other comprehensive income, the cumulative gain or loss 
previously accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable, including 
any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

All the following criteria need to be satisfied for the derecognition of a financial asset: the right to receive cash flows from the asset 
has expired or been transferred; all risk and rewards of ownership of the asset have been substantially transferred; and the 
Company no longer controls the asset (ie has no practical ability to make unilateral decision to sell the asset to a third party).

Derecognition of financial assets

the low credit risk operational simplification.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum 
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

A liability is derecognised when it is extinguished (ie when the obligation in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires). An 
exchange of an existing financial liability for a new one with substantially modified terms, or a substantial modification to the terms 
of a financial liability, is treated as an extinguishment of the existing liability and recognition of a new financial liability.

Financial Instruments (Cont.)

if the credit risk of the financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss 
allowance of the financial instruments at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses; and

General Approach
Under the general approach, at each reporting period, the Company assesses whether the financial instruments are credit impaired, 
and :

the general approach;

the simplified approach;

the purchased or originated credit-impaired approach; and

Expected credit losses are the probability- weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected life of a financial instrument. A 
credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows are due and all cash flows expected to be received, all discounted at 
the original effective interest rate of the financial instrument.

The Company uses the following approaches to impairment, as applicable under AASB 9 : Financial Instruments :

loan commitments that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss; and

financial guarantee contracts that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Loss allowance is not recognised for :

Impairment

financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss; or
equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

The Company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on :

financial assets that are measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income;

lease receivables;
contract assets (eg amount due from customers under contracts);

A financial asset is derecognised when the holder's contractual rights to its cash flows expires, or the asset is transferred in such a 
way that all the risks and rewards of ownership are substantially transferred.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

On derecognition of an investment in equity which the Company elected to classify under fair value through other comprehensive 
income, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or 
loss, but is transferred to retained earnings.
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BAPTIST CARE NORTHERN TERRITORY
ABN: 64 141 539 442

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont.)

(e)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-
-

-

Simplified Approach

Financial Instruments (Cont.)

there is a low risk of default by the borrower;
the borrower has strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term; and

adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term, may not necessarily, reduce the ability of the 
borrower to fulfill its contractual cash flow obligations.

Evidence of credit impairment includes :

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or borrower;

a breach of contract (eg default or past due event);

where a lender has granted to the borrower a concession, due to the borrower's financial difficulty, that the lender would not 
otherwise consider;

the likelihood that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

the disappearance of an active market for the financial asset because of financial difficulties.

If a financial asset is determined to have low credit risk at the initial reporting date, the Company assumes that the credit risk has 
not increased significantly since initial recognition and, accordingly, it can continue to recognise a loss allowance of 12 month 
expected credit loss.

A financial asset is considered to have low credit risk if :

Recognition of Expected Credit Losses in Financial Statements

The carrying amount of financial assets measured at amortised cost includes the loss allowance relating to that asset.

Assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are recognised at fair value with changes in fair value 
recognised in other comprehensive income. The amount in relation to change in credit risk is transferred from other comprehensive 
income to profit or loss at every reporting period.

A financial asset is not considered to carry low credit risk merely due to existence of collateral, or because a borrower has a lower 
risk of default than the risk inherent in the financial assets, or lower than the credit risk of the jurisdiction in which it operates.

The approach is applicable to :

trade receivable; and

lease receivables.

Low Credit Risk Operational Simplification Approach

For financial assets that are unrecognised (eg loan commitments yet to be drawn, financial guarantees), a provision for loss 
allowance is created in the statement of financial position to recognise the loss allowance.

At each reporting date, the Company recognises the movement in the loss allowance as an impairment gain or loss in the statement 
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The simplified approach does not require tracking of changes in credit risk at every reporting period, but instead requires the 
recognition of lifetime expected credit loss at all times.

In measuring the expected credit loss, a provision matrix for trade receivable is used, taking into consideration various data to get to 
an expected credit loss (ie diversity of its customer base, appropriate groupings of its historical loss experience, etc).

Purchased or Originated Credit Impaired Approach
For a financial assets that are considered to be credit impaired (not on acquisition or originations), the Company measures any 
changes in its lifetime expected credit loss as the difference between the asset's gross carrying amount and the present value of 
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate. Any adjustment is recognised in profit 
or loss as an impairment gain or loss.

In order to make such a determination that the financial asset has low credit risk, the Company applies its internal credit risk ratings 
or other methodologies using a globally comparable definition of low credit risk.
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BAPTIST CARE NORTHERN TERRITORY
ABN: 64 141 539 442

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont.)

(f)

(g)

(h)

(i)

(j)

Employee Benefits

Impairment of Assets

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount 
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is not 
recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO).  

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing activities which 
are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are presented as operating cash flows included in receipts from customers or 
payments to suppliers.

The Company classifies employees' long service leave and annual leave entitlements as other long-term employee benefits as they 
are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render 

Defined contribution superannuation benefits

Retirement benefit obligations

Contract Assets
Contract assets are recognised when the Corporation has transferred goods or services to the customer and or completed required
performance obligations, but has yet to establish unconditional rights to consideration. Contract assets are treated as financial
assets for impairment purposes.

Other long-term employee benefits

Where an impairment loss on a revalued individual asset is identified, this is recognised against the revaluation surplus in respect of 
the same class of asset to the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the amount in the revaluation surplus for that class 
of asset.

than termination benefits) that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the annual reporting period in 
which the employees render the related service, including wages, salaries, annual leave and sick leave. Short-term employee 
benefits are measured at the (undiscounted) amounts expected to be paid when the obligation is settled.

Short-term employee benefits

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine 
whether there is any indication that those assets have been impaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the 

Contributions are made by the Company to employees superannuation funds and are charged as expenses when incurred.

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at-call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with 
original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within short-term borrowings in current 
liabilities on the statement of financial position.

position, except where the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end of 
the reporting period, in which case the obligations are presented as current liabilities.

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST recoverable 
from, or payable to, the ATO is included with other receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.

current trade and other payables in the statement of financial position.  

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Goods and Services Tax (GST)
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BAPTIST CARE NORTHERN TERRITORY
ABN: 64 141 539 442

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont.)

(k)

(l)

(m)

(n)

(o)

(p)

(q)

(iii) Costing of volunteers hours

The Directors have reviewed the key assumptions used in the costing of volunteer "donated" hours in 2020 and believe that the 
assumptions and basis used are appropriate to the operations of the Company.

(ii) Valuation of inventories

The directors have reviewed the key assumptions adopted for valuing a replacement value of a bucket of food items per kg as at 30 
June 2020 and believe there has been no significant change in the assumption used at 30 June 2020.

Impairment of accounts receivable

The Company assesses impairment at the end of each reporting period by evaluating conditions and events specific to the 
Company that may be indicative of impairment triggers.

The Company assesses impairment of leasehold improvements and plant and equipment at each reporting date by evaluating 
conditions specific to the Company and to the particular asset that may lead to impairment. If an impairment trigger exists, the 
recoverable amount of the asset is determined. This involves fair value less costs to sell or value-in-use calculations, which 
incorporate a number of key estimates and assumptions. There was no provision for impairment of leasehold improvements and 
plant and equipment at 30 June 2020 (2019: $Nil).

The provision for impairment of receivables assessment requires a degree of estimation and judgement. The level of provision is 
assessed by taking into account the recent sales experience, the ageing of receivables, historical collection rates and specific 
knowledge of the individual debtors' financial position. Provision for impairment of receivables at 30 June 2019 amounted to $Nil 
(2019: $Nil).

Key estimates

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the 
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the 
revision affects both current and future periods.

No provision for income tax has been raised as the Company is exempt from income tax under Div. 50 of the Income Tax 
Assessment Act 1997.

Income Tax

Accounts receivable and other debtors include amounts due from clients for fees and services provided, from donors and any 
outstanding grant receipts. Receivables expected to be collected within 12 months of the end of the reporting period are classified 
as current assets. All other receivables are classified as non-current assets.

Trade and Other Payables

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events, for which it is 
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow can be reliably measured. Provisions recognised represent 
the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation at the end of reporting period.

Where required by Accounting Standards comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with changes in presentation for the 
current financial year.

Trade and other payables represent the liabilities for goods and services received by the Company during the reporting period that 
remain unpaid at the end of the reporting period.Trade payables are recognised at their transaction price. The balance is 
recognised as a current liability with the amounts normally paid within 30 days of recognition of the liability.

Provisions

Comparative Figures

Accounts Receivables and Other Debtors

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

Contract Liabilities
Contract liabilities represent the Company's obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer or complete required 
performance obligations and are recognised when a customer pays consideration, or when the Company recognises a receivable to 
reflect its unconditional right to consideration (whichever is earlier), before the Company has transferred the goods or services to 
the customer and or completed required performance obligations.

The Directors evaluate estimates and judgements incorporated into the financial statements based on historical knowledge and 
best available current information. Estimates assume a reasonable expectation of future events and are based on current trends 
and economic data, obtained both externally and within the Company.

Impairment of leasehold improvements and plant and equipment

(i) Impairment- General
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BAPTIST CARE NORTHERN TERRITORY
ABN: 64 141 539 442

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont.)

(q)

(r)

(iv) Lease term and Option to Extend under AASB 16
The lease term is defined as the non-cancellable period of a lease together with both periods covered by an option to extend the 
lease if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and also periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the 
lessee is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. The options that are reasonably going to be exercised is a key management 
judgement that the entity will make. 

(iii) Coronavirus (COVID-19) Pandemic
Judgement has been exercised in considering the impacts that the Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic has had, or may have, on 
the Company based on known information. This consideration extends to the nature of the products and services offered, 
customers, supply chain, staffing and geographic regions in which the Company operates. Other than as addressed in specific 
notes, there does not currently appear to be either any significant impact upon the financial statements or any significant 
uncertainties with respect to events or conditions which may impact the Company unfavourably as at the reporting date or 
subsequently as a result of the Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic.

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements (Cont.)

(ii) Employee benefits
For the purpose of measurement, AASB 119: Employee Benefits defines obligations for short-term employee benefits as obligations 
expected to be settled wholly before 12 months after the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render the 
related service. As the company expects that most employees will not use all of their annual leave entitlements in the same year in 
which they are earned or during the 12-month period that follows (despite an informal internal policy that requires annual leave to be 
used within 18 months), the directors believe that obligations for annual leave entitlements satisfy the definition of other long-term 
employee benefits and, therefore, are required to be measured at the present value of the expected future payments to be made to 
employees.

Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities

Fair value is the price the Company would receive to sell an asset or would have to pay to transfer a liability in an orderly (ie 
unforced) transaction between independent, knowledgeable and willing market participants at the measurement date.

price in relation to the transfer of such financial instrument, by reference to observable market information where such instruments 
are held as assets.  Where this information is not available, other valuation techniques are adopted and where significant, are 
detailed in the respective note to the financial statements.

The Company reviews the estimated useful lives of leasehold improvements and plant and equipment at the end of each reporting 
period, based on the expected utility of the assets.

The Company measures some of its assets at fair value on either a recurring or non-recurring basis, depending on the 
requirements of the applicable Accounting Standard. 

To identify a performance obligation under AASB 15, the promise must be sufficiently specific to be able to determine when the 
obligation is satisfied. Management exercises judgement to determine whether the promise is sufficiently by taking into account any 
conditions specified in the arrangement, explicit or implicit, regarding the promised goods or services. In making this assessment, 
management includes the nature / type, cost /value, quantity and the period of transfer related to the goods or services promised.

Key judgments

To the extent possible, market information is extracted from the principal market for the asset or liability (i.e. the market with the 
greatest volume and level of activity for the asset or liability). In the absence of such a market, market information is extracted from 
the most advantageous market available to the company at the end of the reporting period (i.e. the market that maximises the 
receipts from the sale of the asset or minimises the payments made to transfer the liability, after taking into account transaction 
costs and transport costs).

As fair value is a market-based measure, the closest equivalent observable market pricing information is used to determine fair 
value. Adjustments to market values may be made having regard to the characteristics of the specific asset or liability. The fair 
values of assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market are determined using one or more valuation techniques. 
These valuation techniques maximise, to the extent possible, the use of observable market data.

For non-financial assets, the fair value measurement also takes into account a market participant's ability to use the asset in its 
highest and best use or to sell it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

(i) Performance Obligations Under AASB 15

The Company determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation and amortisation charges for its property, plant and 
equipment and finite life intangible assets. The useful lives could change significantly as a result of technical innovations or some 
other event. The depreciation and amortisation charge will increase where the useful lives are less than previously estimated lives, 
or technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold will be written off or written down.

(iv) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
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BAPTIST CARE NORTHERN TERRITORY
ABN: 64 141 539 442

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont.)

(s) Economic Dependence

(t)

-

-

-

-

- not applying AASB 16 to leases previously not identified as containing a lease under AASB 117 and Interpretation 4.

The Company has implemented three new Accounting Standards that are applicable for the current reporting period. AASB 15: 
Revenue from Contracts with Customers, AASB 1058: Income of Not-for-Profit Entities and AASB 16: Leases have been applied 
using the cumulative effective method; that is, by recognising the cumulative effect of initially applying AASB 15, AASB 1058 and 
AASB 16 as an adjustment to the opening balance of equity as at 1 July 2019. Therefore, the comparative information has not been 
restated and continues to be reported under AASB 118: Revenue, and AASB 117: Leases and AASB 1004: Contributions. Also to 
note in relation to AASB 16 is that the Company applied the temporary relief for peppercorn leases under AASB 2018-8 to measure 
the right of use assets at cost on initial recognition. 

leases that have remaining lease terms of less than 12 months as at 1 July 2019 have been accounted for in the same way as 
short term leases;

the use of hindsight to determine lease terms on contracts that have options to extend or terminate;

applying AASB 16 to leases previously identified as leases under AASB 117: Leases and Interpretation 4: Determining 
whether an arrangement contains a lease without reassessing whether they are, or contain, a lease at the date of initial 
application; and

Adoption of New and Revised Accounting Standards

The Company has adopted AASB 16: Leases retrospectively with a date of initial application of 1 July 2019. As a result, the 
Company has changed its accounting policy for leases recognition as detailed in this note. In accordance with AASB 16 the 
comparatives for the 2019 reporting period have not been restated and the cumulative effect of initially applying AASB 16 
recognised at 1 July 2019.

The Company has recognised a lease liability and right-of-use asset for all leases (with the exception of short term and low value 
leases) recognised as operating leases under AASB117; Leases where the Company is the lessee. The lease liabilities are 
measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments. The Company's weighted average incremental borrowing rate on 1 
July 2019 applied to the lease liabilities and used to discount the lease payments was 5.78%.

The right of use assets for property, plant and  equipment were measured at their carrying amounts as if AASB 16: Leases had 
been applied since the commencement date, but discounted using the Company's weighted average incremental borrowing rate on 
1 July 2019.

The right of use assets for the remaining leases were measured and recognised in the statement of financial position as at 1 July 
2019 by taking into consideration the lease liability, prepaid and accrued lease payments previously recognised as at 1 July 2019 
(that are related to the lease).

The following practical expedients have been used by the Company in applying AASB 16 for the first time:

for a portfolio of leases that have reasonably similar characteristics, a single discount rate has been applied;

The Company is dependent on the Baptist Care Australia and the NT Government for the majority of its revenue to operate its 
programs and business. At the date of this report, the Board of Directors has no reason to believe that the Baptist Care Australia 
and the NT Government will not continue to support the Company.  The operations and future success of the Company is 
dependent upon the continued support and funding by the government bodies and the achievement of operating surpluses and 
positive operating cash flows.

Initial Application of AASB 16 : Leases
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BAPTIST CARE NORTHERN TERRITORY
ABN: 64 141 539 442

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont.)

(t)

-

-

Category Carrying 
Amount 
under                      

AASB 117

Reclassification Carrying 
Amount 
under                      

AASB 16

Right of Use 
Assets

                -                        -                 -   

Lease 
Liabilities                 -                        -                 -   

Retained 
Earnings

                -                        -                 -   

Operating 
Lease 
Commitments

                -                        -                 -   

Statement of 
Financial 
Position

As 
presented 
on 30 June 

2019

Application 
Impact of 
AASB 15 & 
AASB 1058

As at 1 
July 2019

CURRENT 
LIABILITIES
Unexpended 
Grants  25,000 (25,000) - 
Contract 
Liabilities -  25,000  25,000 

EQUITY

Retained 
Earnings

- - - 

(u)

The Company's weighted average incremental borrowing rate on 1 July 2019 applied to the lease liabilities was 5.78%. There were 
no long term lease commitments at 1 July 2019.

The following summary indicates the impact of the implementation of AASB 16 on 1 July 2019 :

reclassification of Property, Plant and Equipment to Right of Use asset on 1 July 2019; and

reclassification of identified Operating Lease Commitments to right of use assets and to lease liabilities as at 1 July 2019, by 
measuring the present value of their lease payments still to be paid.

Adoption of New and Revised Accounting Standards (Cont.)

The Directors have assessed that the application of AASB 15 and AASB 1058 has had minimal effect on the accounting and
reporting practices of the Company and a corresponding insignificant impact on the Company's operating results for the year ended
30 June 2020. There is no material difference in the results of the Company between applying AASB 15 and AASB 1058 and AASB
118. No adjustments were deemed necessary to the opening balance of equity at 1 July 2019.

The Company has elected to apply AASB 1058 retrospectively only to contracts that are not completed contracts at the date of 
initial application.

Initial Application of AASB 15 and AASB 1058

The table below provides details of the significant changes and quantitative impact of these changes on initial date if application 1 
July 2019:

The Company has applied AASB 15 : Revenue from Contracts with Customers and AASB 1058: Income of Not-for-Profit Entities 
using the cumulative effective method of initially applying AASB 15 and AASB 1058 as an adjustment to the opening balance of 
equity at 1 July 2019. Therefore the comparative information has not been restated and continues to be presented under AASB 
118: Revenue and AASB 1004: Contributions.

A classification change occurred which resulted in Grants Received in Advance now being classified as Contract Liability in line with 
wording used in AASB 15.

Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have recently been issued or amended but are not yet mandatory, have 
not been early adopted by the Company for the annual reporting period ended 30 June 2020. The Company has not yet assessed 
the impact of these new or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations.

New Accounting Standards and Interpretations Not Yet Mandatory Or Early Adopted
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

2020 2019
$ $

2A Community Distribution Trading Revenue

Donation in kind  - food in kind tonnage  1,807,442  1,228,167 
Stock handling fees  222,954  174,453 
Food for life vouchers  13,850  11,330 

Total community distribution trading revenue  2,044,246  1,413,950 

Donations in cash
Donations - churches  17,844  13,925 
Shop stock donations  57,806  57,743 
Donations - general  130,745  122,599 

 206,395  194,267 

Gross community distribution trading revenue  2,250,641  1,608,217 

Distribution of food to communities and organisations (1,911,697) (1,296,322)

Net community distribution trading revenue  338,944  311,895 

2B Donations in kind
Volunteers employees - hours  749,105  557,070 
Non cash sponsorship  9,652  17,190 

 758,757  574,260 

2C Other Income 2020 2019
$ $

Affiliation fees  5,982  5,100 
Interest income  2,019  3,123 
Revenue from (non-reciprocal) government grants and other grants  734,115  567,095 
Fundraising campaign  7,681  25,911 
Other income  64,630  12,477 

Total other income  814,427  613,706 

Note 3 Expenses

3A Employee Cost 2020 2019
$ $

Paid employee benefits expenses
Salaries and wages  581,791  505,583 
Superannuation  52,422  46,583 
Movement in leave expenses  1,360  10,920 

Total paid employee benefits expenses  635,573  563,086 

Donation in kind - employee benefits expenses
Volunteer wages  749,105  557,070 

Total employee benefits expenses  1,384,678  1,120,156 

3B Depreciation 2020 2019
$ $

Furniture and equipment  24,584  29,365 
Motor vehicles  46,606  41,517 
Right of Use Assets - Property  42,961 - 

Total depreciation expense  114,151  70,882 

Note 2 Revenue and Other Income
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

3C Other Expenses 2020 2019
$ $

Accounting fees  7,414  7,750 
Advertising and promotion  2,044  10,129 
Bank charges  2,533  1,528 
Bad debts -  400 
Cartage and freight  6,242  14,217 
Cleaning and waste removal  4,604  5,998 
Computer expenses  10,299  1,709 
Consultancy fees -  4,002 
Equipment maintenance costs  9,302  8,527 
Fundraising event expense  1,311  4,649 
Interest expense on lease liabilities  9,934 - 
Insurance  5,679  5,371 
Meeting expenses  575  1,630 
Motor vehicle expenses  28,032  27,367 
Office consumables  5,139  2,710 
Printing and postage  6,330  5,239 
Program services charge  13,310  5,975 
Rental expense on operating leases -  95,653 
Rental expense on short term leases  40,312 - 
Repairs and maintenance  6,426  909 
Subscriptions and renewals  1,790  2,563 
Sundry expense  852  1,282 
Telephone, fax and internet  4,324  4,788 
Travel and accomodation  6,535  14,770 
Utilities - power  63,065  54,132 

Total other expenses  236,052  281,298 

Note 4 Cash and Cash Equivalents 2020 2019

Note $ $

CURRENT
Cash at bank  353,371  79,885 

Cash on hand  191  843 

Total Cash on Hand and at Bank 13, 15, 16  353,562  80,728 

Note 5 Trade and Other Receivables 2020 2019
Note $ $

CURRENT
Receivables :
Trade receivables  3,885  5,541 
Less: provision for impairment of receivables - - 

Total accounts receivable  3,885  5,541 

Other Receivables :
Accrued income  19,126 - 
Redeemable gift voucher - donated  595  3,662 

Total other receivables  19,721  3,662 

Total current trade and other receivables 15, 16  23,606  9,203 

The Company's normal credit term is 30 days.
No collateral is held over trade and other receivables.
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Note 6 Property, Plant and Equipment 2020 2019
$ $

Plant and equipment:
Furniture and equipment:
At cost  282,059  286,241 
Less accumulated depreciation (186,818) (178,399)

Total Plant and equipment  95,241  107,842 

Motor vehicles:
At cost  443,115  435,115 
Less accumulated depreciation (252,691) (206,085)

Total motor vehicles  190,424  229,030 

Total plant and equipment  285,665  336,872 

Total property, plant and equipment  285,665  336,872 

Movements in carrying amounts

Motor 
Vehicles

$

Furniture 
and 

Equipment 
$

Total
$

Carrying amount  at 1 July 2019  229,030  107,842  336,872 

Additions at cost  8,000  11,984  19,984 
Opening balances transferred to Note 9: Right of Use Assets - - -
Disposals - - -
Depreciation expense (46,606) (24,584) (71,190)
Carrying amount at 30 June 2020  190,424  95,241  285,665 

Note 7 Right of Use Assets

Right of Use Assets
2020

$

Leased buildings  343,691 
Less accumulated depreciation (42,961)

Total right of use assets  300,730 

Movements in Carrying Amounts
Leased 

Buildings
Total

$ $
Carrying amount  at 1 July 2019 - -

Recognised on initial application of AASB 16 - -
Opening balances transferred from Note 6: P,P&E - -
Additions at cost  343,691  343,691 
Depreciation expense (42,961) (42,961)
Carrying amount at 30 June 2020  300,730  300,730 

Movement in the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between the beginning and the end of 
the current financial year:

(a) AASB 16 Related Amounts Recognised in the Balance Sheet

The Company's lease is a 2 year building lease.
The option to extend or terminate are contained in the property leases of the Company. This clause provide the 
Company the opportunity to manage the lease in order to align with its strategies. The extension or termination option is 
only exercisable by the Company. The extension or termination options which were probable to be exercised have been 
included in the calculation of the right of use asset.
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Note 7 Right of Use Assets (Cont.)

2020
$

Depreciation charge related to right of use assets  42,961 
Interest expense on lease liabilities  9,934 
Short Term leases expense  40,312 

 93,207 

Note 8 Trade and Other Payables 2020 2019
Note $ $

CURRENT
Trade creditors and accrued expenses - - 
Other payables  20,078  31,979 
Employee payroll liability payable  4,598  3,812 
GST payable (net)  3,380  10,976 
Deferred income -  25,000 
Contract Liabilities - grant funded programmes  101,915 - 

Total Trade and Other Payables  129,971  71,767 

Trade and other payables:
Total Current  129,971  71,767 
Total Non Current - - 

Total trade and other payables  129,971  71,767 

Less:
Deferred income - (25,000)
Contract Liabilities - grant funded programmes (101,915) - 

Financial liabilities as trade and other payables 15, 16  28,056  46,767 

2020
$

Balance at the beginning of the year - 

Reclassified from Deferred income / Unexpended grants - 
on initial application of AASB 15  25,000 
Additions: Grants for which performance obligations will only be satisfied 
in subsequent years  101,915 
Expended : Grants acquitted or utilised during the year (25,000)

Closing balance  101,915 

Note 9 Lease Liabilities 2020 2019
Note $ $

CURRENT
Leases - properties  79,576 - 

 79,576 - 
NON-CURRENT
Leases - properties  225,819 - 

 225,819 - 

Total Lease Liabilities 15, 16  305,395 - 

The lease liabilities are secured by the underlying assets and are
subject to the terms of their individual lease agreements.

(b) Contract liabilities - movement in amounts :

(a) Financial liabilities at amortised cost are classified as trade and other 
payables.

(b) AASB 16 Related Amounts Recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
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Note 10 Employee Provisions 2020 2019
$ $

CURRENT
Provision for employee benefits: annual leave  35,367  38,208 
Provision for employee benefits: TOIL  3,001  5,452 

 38,368  43,660 
NON-CURRENT

Provision for employee benefits: long service leave  7,764  6,558 

 7,764  6,558 

Total provisions for employee benefits  46,132  50,218 

Total
Analysis of total provisions: $
Opening balance at 1 July 2019  50,218 
Net provisions raised during the year (4,086)
Amounts used - 
Balance at 30 June 2020  46,132 

Provision For Employee Benefits

Employee provisions represents amounts accrued for annual leave and long service leave.

Note 11 Key Management Remuneration 2020 2019

$ $

The totals of remuneration paid to KMP of the Company during the year 
   are as follows:

Short- term employment benefits  101,095  96,954 
Post employment benefits  9,286  9,025 

Total key management remuneration  110,381  105,979 

Note 12 Other Related Party Disclosure

There were no other related party transactions in 2020 (2019 :$Nil).

The current portion for this provision includes the total amount accrued for annual leave entitlements and the amount 
accrued for long service leave entitlements that have vested due to employees having completed the required period of 
service.  Based on past experience, the Company does not expect the full amount of annual leave or long service leave 
balances classified as current liabilities to be settled within the next 12 months. However, these amounts must be 
classified as current liabilities since the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement of these 
amounts in the event employees wish to use their leave entitlement.

The non-current portion for this provision includes amounts accrued for long service leave entitlements that have not yet 
vested in relation to those employees who have not yet completed the required period of service. 

In calculating the present value of future cash flows in respect of long service leave, the probability of long service leave 
being taken is based upon historical data. The measurement and recognition criteria for employee benefits have been 
discussed in Note 1(g).

Other related parties include close family members of key management personnel and entities that are controlled or 
jointly controlled by those key management personnel or individual or collectively with their close family members.

Transactions between related parties are on commercial terms and conditions no more favourable than those available 
to other parties unless otherwise stated.
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Note 13 Cash Flow Information 2020 2019
Note $ $

(a) Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to 
    Statement of Cash Flows:

Cash on hand and at bank 4  353,562  80,728 

Total cash as stated in the Statement of cash flows  353,562  80,728 

(b) Reconciliation of Cash Flow from Operating Activities
   with Current Year Profit
Profit for the current year  177,247  27,525 

Non-cash flows:

Depreciation and amortisation expense  114,151  70,882 
Interest expense on lease liabilities  9,934 - 

Changes in assets and liabilities:

(Increase)/decrease in Trade and other receivables (14,403)  43 
(Increase)/decrease in Inventories -  13,000 
Increase/(decrease) in Trade and other payables  58,204 (283,173)
Increase/(decrease) in Employee provisions (4,086)  8,283 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating  activities  341,048 (163,440)

Note 14 Capital and Leasing Commitments: 2020 2019
$ $

(a) Lease Commitments
Rental commitments : short term and low value assets
Committed at the reporting date but not recognised as liabilities, payable:
Within one year -  54,080 
One to five years - - 
More than 5 years - - 

-  54,080 

(b) Capital Expenditure Commitments

The Company has no capital expenditure commitments as at 30 June 2020 (2019:$Nil).

Included in the 2019 lease commitments was the short term lease for the Company's premises.
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Note 15 Financial Risk Management

2020 2019
Financial assets Note $ $

Financial assets at amortised cost:
Cash and cash equivalents 4  353,562  80,728 
Trade and other receivables 5  23,606  9,203 
Total financial assets  377,168  89,931 

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
Trade and other payables 8  28,056  46,767 
Lease liabilities 9  305,395 - 

 333,451  46,767 
Total financial liabilities

Note 16 Fair Value Measurements

Fair value estimation

Note
Carrying 
Amount Fair Value

Carrying 
Amount Fair Value

$ $ $ $
Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 4, 15  353,562  353,562  80,728  80,728 
Trade and other receivables 5, 15  23,606  23,606  9,203  9,203 
Total financial assets  377,168  377,168  89,931  89,931 

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables 8, 15  28,056  28,056  46,767  46,767 
Lease liabilities 9, 15  305,395  305,395 - - 
Total financial liabilities  28,056  28,056  46,767  46,767 

Note 17 Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Refer to Note 16 for detailed disclosures regarding the fair value measurements of the Company's financial assets.

2020 2019

(i) Cash on hand, accounts receivable and other debtors, contract assets, accounts payable and other payables and 
contract liabilities, are short-term instruments in nature whose carrying value is equivalent to fair value. Trade and other 
payables exclude amounts provided for annual leave, which is outside the scope of AASB 9.

(ii) Loans receivable and lease liabilities fair values are assessed on an  annual basis by  Management and the 
Directors. Current available data is used in assessing their carrying and fair values.

The Company has a contingent asset amounting to $45,464 as at 30 June 2020 (2019:$Nil). This amount was allocated 
from Covid-19 funds received from Federal Government by Food Bank Australia. This amount will be received in the 
form of inventory in 2021 financial year.

receivables and payables and lease liabilities.

The totals for each category of financial instruments, measured in accordance with AASB 9 as detailed in the accounting 
policies to these financial statements, are as follows:

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are presented in the following table and can be compared to 
their carrying values as presented in the statement of financial position.
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Note 18 Events After the Reporting Period

Note 19 Members' Guarantee

Note 20 Company Details

The Registered Office of the company is:

Baptist Care Northern Territory 
9 Mel Road
Berrimah NT 0828

The Principal place of business is:

Baptist Care Northern Territory 
9 Mel Road
Berrimah NT 0828

The impact of the Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic is ongoing and had little financial impact on the Company up to 30 
June 2020, it is not practicable to estimate the potential impact, positive or negative, after the reporting date. The 
situation is rapidly developing and is dependent on measures imposed by the Australian Government and other 
countries, such as maintaining social distancing requirements, quarantine, travel restrictions and any economic stimulus 
that may be provided.
 
No other matter or circumstance has arisen since 30 June 2020 that has significantly affected, or may significantly affect 
the Company's operations, the results of those operations, or the Company's state of affairs in future financial years.

The Company is incorporated under the Corporations Act 2001 and is a company limited by guarantee. If the Company 
is wound up, the constitution states that each member is required to contribute a maximum of $1 towards meeting any 
outstanding obligations of the Company. At 30 June 2020, the total amount that members of the Company are liable to 
contribute if the Company is wound up is $1.
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1.

(a)

(b)

2.

Dated September 2020

Dated September 2020

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors and with subsection 60.15(2) of the Australian
Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Regulation 2013.

BAPTIST CARE NORTHERN TERRITORY
ABN: 64 141 539 442                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          

DIRECTORS DECLARATION
 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

The Directors of Baptist Care Northern Territory, declare that in the Directors' opinion :

In the opinion there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they
become due and payable. 

The financial statements and notes, as set out on pages 4 to 27, are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 and with the 
Australian Charities and Not-for-Profits Commission Act 2012 (ACNC Act) and :

comply with Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements; and

give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 30 June 2020,  its performance and  cash flows for the 
year ended on that date.
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Lauren Tattersall, Director

10

10

Phoebe van Bentum, Chair



 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF BAPTIST CARE NORTHERN TERRITORY 
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the financial report of Baptist Care Northern Territory (“the Company’’), which comprises the statement 
of financial position as at 30 June 2020, statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes 
in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary 
of significant accounting policies, and the directors’ declaration. 
 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of Baptist Care Northern Territory, is in accordance with the requirements 
of Division 60 of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 and the Corporations Act 2001, including: 

i. Giving a true and fair view of the Company’s financial position as at 30 June 2020 and of its financial performance 
and cash flows for the year then ended; and 

ii. Complying with Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements (including Australian 
Accounting Interpretations), the Corporations Act 2001 and Div 60 of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits 
Commission Regulation 2013. 

 
 
Basis for Opinion  
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of the Australian Charities and 
Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 and the Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical requirements of the Accounting 
Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant 
to our audit of the financial report in Australia.  We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
the Code.  
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
 
Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Report  
 
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view – in 
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements, the Corporations Act 2001 and the 
Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 and is appropriate to meet the needs of the members. The 
directors are also responsible for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of 
the financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.   
 
In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
the directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
  



 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF BAPTIST CARE NORTHERN TERRITORY 

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT (CONT.) 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Report 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian 
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:  
 
▪ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error, design and 

perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control.  

 

▪ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Company’s internal control.  

 

▪ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by the directors. 

 

▪ Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.  

 

▪ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the disclosures, and whether 
the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

 
We communicate with the directors and management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 
audit. 
 
We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear 
on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
 

 
Nexia Edwards Marshall NT 
Chartered Accountants 

 
Noel Clifford 
Partner  
Dated 10 September 2020  



DONORS AND SPONSORS

We would like to acknowledge and sincerely thank all of the

companies, individuals and organisations that joined the fight

against hunger in the Northern Territory.

VOLUNTEERS

Baptist Care NT would not be able to reach Territorians in

need without the continued support given each year by

hundred of volunteers.  

THANK YOU
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Yes, I am joining the fight against hunger in the Northern Territory!

Bank: Westpac

Account Name : Baptist Care Northern Territory 

Bank BSB : 035 - 311 

Account No. : 191350

If you wish to receive a donation receipt please

leave your name/business name in the narrative. 

Our preferred method of money donation is

through our website www.foodbank.org.au

click on NT and follow the links.

DONATIONS

DIRECT DEPOSIT

WEBSITE/CREDIT CARD



Baptist Care 

Northern Territory
9 Mel Road, Berrimah NT 0828

PO Box 38264, Winnellie NT 0821

PH: 08 8947 3669

W: bcnt.org.au


